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STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED 
 

1. The respondents have violated Massachusetts rules of civil procedure. 

2. The respondents have violated Massachusetts statutory law. 

3. The respondents have violated the civil rights of the petitioner. 

4. The respondents have violated the U.S. Constitution. 

JURISDICTION 
 

The jurisdiction of this court is invoked under M.G.L. ch. 211, § 3. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 
 

1. A legitimate civil case was commenced by the petitioner, Thomas Oliver, in the Taunton District 

Court in December of 2005.  This case has been recorded in the court docket as case No. 

 0531CV001158 (hereinafter, “the case”). 

2. Respondents have allowed Defendant’s answer in the case to be filed well beyond the twenty 

(20) day requirement of Mass.R.Civ.P. 12(a)(1) and, in doing so, have violated such rule of procedure. 

 To wit, Defendant’s answer was filed nearly nine (9) years late. 

3. Respondents have allowed Defendant’s fraudulent permissive counterclaim in the case to be 

filed well beyond the twenty (20) day requirement of Mass.R.Civ.P. 12(a)(1) and, in doing so, have 
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violated such rule of procedure.  To wit, Defendant’s counterclaim was also filed nearly nine (9) years 

late. 

5. Respondents have flagrantly and repeatedly violated rules of procedure, statutory law, and the 

U.S. Constitution. 

6. Respondents have flagrantly and repeatedly ignored facts in the case. 

7. Respondents have flagrantly and repeatedly allowed crimes, most of them felonies, to be 

committed in the case by Joseph L. Michaud, defense counsel, (hereinafter, “Michaud”) and others and 

have thus committed misprision of a felony by refusing to take corrective/punitive action. 

LEGAL DISCUSSION 
 

This petition is being submitted because the state has abolished a remedy formerly available to the 

petitioner, the writ of mandamus, under Mass.R.Civ.P. 81 (b).  The petitioner also filed a complaint 

against Kevan J. Cunningham with the Massachusetts Commission on Judicial Conduct (CJC) on July 14, 

2015 (see appendix A).  As with all complaints filed with the CJC and Office of Bar Counsel (OBC) by 

persons of little political power, the complaint was summarily dismissed without investigation shortly 

thereafter.  He also filed a complaint against Michaud with the OBC on January 30, 2015. 

In fact, of the six (6) or seven (7) complaints filed by the petitioner in two different states 

against both transgressing attorneys and corrupt judges, exactly zero have been meaningfully 

addressed by organizations in either state, despite the offenders having violated a cumulative total of 

more than thirty (30) rules and canons.  With the “fox effectively in charge of the hen house” regarding 

most of these governing organizations which are composed primarily of lawyers and judges 

nationwide, the average non-politically connected litigant has hardly a prayer in just and rightful 

disposition of such complaints.  In fact, a paltry 2 percent result in disciplinary action.1 

Since the appellate court, like all the lower courts, refuses to look at the facts in the case and 

continues to ignore rules of procedure, law, and the U.S. Constitution, the only form of redress at the 

state level to correct egregious behavior is a petition to the Supreme Judicial Court of Massachusetts. 

 The petitioner has already filed complaints with the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) against the 

                                                           
1
 Naheedy and Scott, Stack the Legal Odds in Your Favor: Understand America’s Corrupt Judicial System—Protect Yourself 

Now and Boost Chances of Winning Cases Later (Smart Play Publishing, 2016), 16. 
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respondents (and others) for acting under the color of law in flagrant violation of 18 U.S. Code § 242 

and for other reasons. 

Regarding case management, the district court has not been straightforward with its duties.  

Email correspondence from the district court on September 8, 2014, confirms a default judgment in 

favor of the petitioner being vacated. 

“Tom,  
Please be advised that, after further review and consultation with the Clerk Magistrate, the 
judgement [sic] that issued has been vacated and will be scheduled for a motion hearing on 
10/29/2014 @ 10:00 AM.  You, or an Attorney on your behalf, will need to be present.” 
 

The convoluted court record, however, shows that on September 15, 2014, the judgment was vacated 

as “issued in error” (see appendix B).  The reason for this entry is that Michaud called the court crying 

because he messed up by not filing a timely answer and counterclaim, and it was vacated as a favor to 

him over the phone.  Petitioner has provided ample proof of this.  One piece of indisputable evidence 

is the email he received from the court on September 8, 2014, saying the judgment was vacated (See 

exhibit I in appendix of Petitioner’s brief to the appellate court).  However, the court first officially 

mentions its “error” (really a non-existent error) on the docket on September 15, 2014, coincidentally 

several days AFTER Michaud filed his motion to vacate judgment on September 9, 2014—which was 

a day LATER than the email received from the court—and PRIOR to any hearing for the motion!  

Although there is no entry on the docket for such motion being heard on October 29, 2014, there is a 

paradoxical ruling by Kevan J. Cunningham on November 09, 2014, allowing the motion to vacate an 

already vacated judgment, for at least the third time, maybe to ensure it wouldn’t somehow unvacate 

itself. 

On September 10, 2014, petitioner received an additional email from the court clerk: 

“Based upon our file, your motion for default judgement [sic] must be heard and allowed by a 
Judge.  Therefore, since the judgement [sic] was entered in error it has been vacated.  The 
Defendant has also filed a Motion to Dismiss, Motion to Vacate Default Judgement [sic], and 
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Default Judgement [sic].  All 4 motions will be heard at the same 
time on 10-29-14.” 
 

The implication of any error in entry is incorrect since civil procedure rule 55(b)(1) clearly states: 

“(b) Judgment. Judgment by default may be entered as follows:  
(1) By the Clerk. When the plaintiff's claim against a defendant is for a sum certain or for a sum 
which can by computation be made certain, the clerk upon request of the plaintiff and upon 
affidavit of the amount due and affidavit that the defendant is not an infant or incompetent person 
or an incapacitated person as defined in G.L. c.190B, shall enter judgment for that amount and costs 
against the defendant, if he has been defaulted for failure to appear.” 
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The motion for default judgment was filed under this rule.  Although the district court had stated in the 

above email that the default entry was in error, it was not.  All requirements of the case were met 

perfectly according to rule 55(a) and (b)(1).  Now, if rules 55(c), 60(a), and 60(b) are all studied 

carefully, it can be seen that the only way an error-free default judgment can be vacated is by motion 

under 60(b).  The emails by court personnel and the confusing court record are all likely part of a 

smokescreen to cover up a call by Michaud to the court on or about September 8, 2014, in order to get 

the judgment orally and illegally vacated.  This is nothing less than conspiracy to commit fraud.  At a 

time beginning shortly thereafter, the court then tried to cover its tracks with multiple docket entries 

to conceal the political favor. 

Besides the evidence provided on page three of this petition, the petitioner knows this call was 

made because a package from Michaud was delivered by U.S. mail not long after September 8, 2014, 

to the mailing address the petitioner gave to the clerk by email on August 28, 2014.  The only way 

Michaud could have possibly known of this address is via contact with the court since this is not the 

residential address of the petitioner.  It may not be against court rules of procedure to contrive the 

court record and perform political favors or against rules of professional conduct for a lawyer to ask for 

them, but it certainly violates the petitioner’s right of due process under the Fourteenth Amendment. 

The high court has ruled in Commonwealth v. Bertini “We therefore allow interlocutory review 

under G.L. c. 211, § 3, only where ‘there are substantial claims alleging violation of the appellant's 

substantive rights,’ and the error complained of is ‘irremediable so that an order for a new trial in the 

normal process of appeal will not put the defendant in statu quo’” quoting Beckman v. Commonwealth 

(emphasis added).  Obviously, violating court rules of procedure and statutory law rise to the level of, if 

not eclipse, “violation of the appellant’s substantive rights.”  Denying the petitioner’s rights of due 

process under the Fourteenth Amendment and possibly denying other civil rights as well in the case 

likewise and quite easily exceed this standard. 

Defendant filed a (fraudulent) answer and counterclaim in the case nearly nine years late.  This 

was done in violation of Civil Procedure Rule 12(a)(1).  The court has not only refused to take remedial 

action, it has chosen to ignore this fact. 

Michaud has committed at least three state felonies in this case: obstruction of justice, in 

violation of General Law Chapter 268 § 13B(1); perjury, in violation of General Law Chapter 268 § 1; 

and conspiracy to commit fraud and has violated 18 U.S. Code § 241 and § 1623(a).  These acts have all 
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been clearly elaborated in Petitioner’s brief to the appellate court (See pages 27 to 39).  The court has 

not only refused to take remedial action, it has chosen to ignore the existence of these crimes. 

Petitioner was denied a jury trial, a right provided under the U.S. Constitution.  He has 

repeatedly stated this fact (See pages 93 and 94 and exhibit E2 in appendix of Petitioner’s brief to the 

appellate court).  Since the court gave no indication to either party who contacted it prior to trial that it 

would not reschedule the trial, Petitioner did not expect a judgment to issue.  What was expected is 

some form of communication from the court indicating a new trial date.  By not allowing a continuance 

with good cause, Civil Procedure Rule 40(b) has been violated.  The court has not only refused to take 

remedial action, it has chosen to ignore this fact. 

The court has on many occasions failed to notify Petitioner of court events and rulings 

according to Civil Procedure Rule 77(d), such as the above judgment being issued on November 3, 

2015.  Furthermore, the court has instructed Petitioner not to contact it.  This is an egregious violation 

of his right to due process under the Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution (See exhibit E in 

appendix of Petitioner’s brief to the appellate court).  The court has not only refused to take remedial 

action, it has chosen to ignore these facts. 

Appellate Procedure Rule 4(a) states that a notice of appeal sent to the appellate division will 

be deemed filed with the trial court on the date the appellate division receives it.  The appellate court 

conveniently leaves out in its rescript that Petitioner filed his notice with the appellate division in 

December of 2015, not January of 2016.  The court has chosen to ignore this fact. 

Massachusetts General Law Chapter 276 § 100A(6) clearly states that sealed records will not be 

used except during future sentencing.  Kevan J. Cunningham has disregarded this criminal law and 

allowed Defendant to reference sealed information completely unrelated to the case.  In doing so, he 

has violated 18 U.S. Code § 242.  The court has not only refused to take remedial action, it has chosen 

to ignore this fact. 

Because many judges have ruled in the case without regard to rules of procedure, statutory 

law, or the U.S. Constitution, Judicial Canon 1, Rule 1.1; Canon 2, Rule 2.4 (A); Canon 2, Rule 2.4 (B); 

and Canon 2, Rule 2.9 A(3)(a) have been violated.  The court has not only refused to take remedial 

action, it has chosen to ignore this fact. 

Since judges have decided not to investigate the criminal acts of Michaud and court officials 

involved in the case, those judges have committed misprision of a felony according to 18 U.S. Code § 4.  

The court has not only refused to take remedial action, it has chosen to ignore this fact. 
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The court record was manipulated to show that the original default judgment was vacated after 

the motion to vacate was filed by the defendant, and the entry of November 9, 2014, further attempts 

to hide this crime and the conspiracy behind it.  As such, 18 U.S. Code § 1506 has been violated.  The 

court has not only refused to take remedial action, it has chosen to ignore this fact. 

This court must know that other courts have ruled that a litigant cannot benefit by his own 

misdeeds or illegal acts.  “’[Equitable estoppel] is wholly independent of the limitations period itself 

and takes its life from the equitable principle that no man [may] profit from his own wrongdoing in a 

court of justice.’  (Battuello, supra, 64 Cal.App.4th 842, 847-848, 75 Cal.Rptr.2d 548, quoting Bomba v. 

W.L. Belvidere, Inc. (7th Cir.1978) 579 F.2d 1067, 1070.)” (Emphasis strongly added.)  See Lantzy v. 

Centex Homes, 73 P. 3d 517 (2003)  Cal Supreme Court and many others.  Michaud has profited several 

times from his own wrongdoing and criminal acts. 

CONCLUSION 
 

To summarize, the courts have effectively wrapped dozens of errors and criminal acts inside an 

outer shell composed of the notion of an “untimely” notice for the filing of the original appeal.  They 

are all effectively saying, “We’re going to ignore every single fact you are presenting and continue to 

hide all the crimes that have been committed because we’re not going to let you get through the tough 

outer shell even though there is ample case law that you’ve provided allowing for it—simply because 

we choose to do this.”  The courts have been biased with their rulings because Petitioner has justifiably 

filed complaints with the CJC, BBO, FBI, DoJ, and many other organizations.  The courts’ message is 

basically, “Let’s break the rules to lock Petitioner out of the house, and then once he’s locked out, 

follow the rules so that he can’t get back in, and if that doesn’t work, break the rules to ensure it 

doesn’t happen.”  This is disturbing.  The only reason Petitioner is not winning the case is because the 

system doesn’t want him to win; it has nothing to do with logic, law, or justice. 

The case all boils down to Petitioner doing a significant amount of off-site consulting work, and 

then not only does Defendant refuse to pay, but the court illegally rips $11,271.53 out of Petitioner’s 

hands while allowing several people to commit multiple crimes.  Add to this, Defendant puts 

Petitioner’s company, BR Enterprises, out of business, and then for stealing at least $5,000 from him 

through a suspended attorney, what does the legal system do about all of this?  It “rewards” Petitioner 

by saying he needs to pay Defendant $32,913.30, which just by chance happens to be very close to the 

original amount of Petitioner’s claim.  This is 100% completely outrageous!  No judge in any court has 
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yet to lift a toxic finger to remedy the extreme injustices in the case, which could very well be the 

poster child/case for the grossest miscarriage of justice in that state this century.  The petitioner 

requests this high court to mandate that the respondents remedy their violation of court rules of 

procedure and statutory law and that this court hears the case on its true merits.  The petitioner 

demands the high court investigate the misdeeds and criminal acts of Michaud and others involved 

and punish them accordingly! 

Someone has to finally step forward, take responsibility, and uphold justice, regardless if it 

implicates personnel in lower courts or anyone else for that matter.  In a best-case scenario to uphold 

justice, this court will vacate the current fraudulent judgment and reinstate the original correct 

judgment.  In a worst-case scenario to uphold justice, Petitioner will be allowed a jury trial (preferably 

in a non-corrupt court, if one exists in that state) at the very least.  Remember that judges are paid to 

do a job based on rules and law, not to render decisions that ignore facts just to protect their friends, 

colleagues, or others!!!  From the foregoing facts, it is clear the respondents have violated the rules of 

procedure, statutory law, the civil rights of Petitioner, and the U.S. Constitution as enumerated in the 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED, and the high court, therefore, should absolutely grant this petition 

for interlocutory relief. 

 

If this court doesn’t take action to address ignored facts, serve justice, and punish criminals, 

then which one will? 

 

         
Date:  February 20, 2018    _________________________________________ 
                                                                     Thomas Oliver, pro se 
 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

"Who will govern the governors?  There is only one force in the nation that can be depended upon to keep the 

government pure and the governors honest, and that is the people themselves.  They alone, if well informed, are 

capable of preventing the corruption of power, and of restoring the nation to its rightful course if it should go 

astray.  They alone are the safest depository of the ultimate powers of government." - Thomas Jefferson 
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APPENDIX C 

SUMMARY OF RULES, LAWS, AND RIGHTS VIOLATED 

In favor of Defendant (21):        in favor of Petitioner (0): 

Civil Procedure Rule 12(a)(1) 

Civil Procedure Rule 40(b) 

Civil Procedure Rule 55(c) 

Civil Procedure Rule 60(a) 

Civil Procedure Rule 60(b) 

Civil Procedure Rule 77(d) 

Appellate Procedure Rule 4(a) 

Canon 1, Rule 1.1 

Canon 2, Rule 2.4 (A) 

Canon 2, Rule 2.4 (B) 

Canon 2, Rule 2.9 A(3)(a) 

General Law Chapter 268 § 1 

General Law Chapter 276 § 100A(6) 

General Law Chapter 268 § 13B(1) 

Fourteenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution 

18 U.S. Code § 4 

18 U.S. Code § 241 

18 U.S. Code § 242 

18 U.S. Code § 1506 

18 U.S. Code § 1623(a) 

Conspiracy to commit fraud 

 

If the above do not reveal how ridiculously lopsided the case is, nothing will. 


